
CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF RELIANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED IN PERSON, TELEPHONICALLY AND 
ELECTRONICALLY AT THE FOLLOWING: 

CITY OF COMMERCE 
ADMINISTRATION CONFERENCE ROOM 

2535 COMMERCE WAY 
COMMERCE, CA 90040 

TELECONFERENCE PHONE NUMBER: (669) 900-6833, 6476620089# 

ELECTRONICALLY AT ZOOM MEETING ID: 647 662 0089 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 9, 2025 

11:00 A.M. 

A G E N D A 

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

Board Members: Francis De Leon Sanchez, Vice Chair - Bell Gardens 
Hugo Argumedo, Secretary – Commerce 

    Emma Sharif, Chair – Compton 
Victor Farfan, Treasurer – Hawaiian Gardens 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

1



3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Public participation is now open.  The members of the audience now have the right 
to speak on agenda items and any item under the jurisdiction of the Authority.  This 
period will be limited to thirty minutes, with no more than three minutes for each 
speaker.  Anyone desiring to speak during the public comment period must submit 
an email request juan@sixheron.com, or to the Authority Secretary via Zoom prior 
to the close of public participation.  Due to policy and Brown Act requirements, 
action will not be taken on any issues not on the Agenda. 

Please state your name and address clearly. 

4. NEW BUSINESS – OPEN  SESSION

4-1. Consideration and Possible Action to approve the Minutes of the June 11,
2025 Regular Meeting of the Board.

4-2. Consideration and Possible Action to receive and file Financial Summary and
Warrant Register dated July 9, 2025.

4-3. Status Update & Report from California Advocacy, LLC with respect to
legislative matters.

4-4. Consideration and Possible Action on Legislative & Regulatory Matters.

4-5. Review Draft of Request for Proposals for Solicitation of JPA Website
Development & Management Services.

5. OTHER MATTERS AND REPORTS

5-1. General Counsel’s Report

Pursuant to Government Code § 54954.2 (a)(3) – A report to the Board of Directors 
and the public on General Counsel’s activities, including compliance efforts, 
approval of contracts as to form, receipt of notices, and requests to place matters 
on subsequent agendas (excluding any matters qualifying for closed session 
consideration).  

5-2. Executive Director’s Report

6. NEW BUSINESS - CLOSED SESSION

2

mailto:juan@sixheron.com


6-1. Conference with Legal Counsel Anticipated Litigation - Significant Exposure
to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 subdivision (d)(4)
(One Matter)

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

8. CHAIRMAN AND BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

This is the time and place for the Chairman and Board Members to report on 
any other items of interest.  Upon request by an individual Board Member, 
the Authority may choose to take action on any of the subject matters listed 
below. 

Treasurer Farfan (Hawaiian Gardens) 

Secretary Argumedo (Commerce) 

Vice Chair De Leon Sanchez (Bell Gardens) 

Chair Sharif (Compton) 

9. ADJOURNMENT

The next regular meeting of the California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers 
Authority will be held August 13, 2025 in the City of Compton. 

3



CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF-RELIANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

CITY OF BELL GARDENS 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER – 2ND FLOOR, CITY HALL 

7100 GARFIELD AVENUE 
BELL GARDENS, CA 90201 

TELECONFERENCE PHONE NUMBER: (669) 900-6833, 6476620089# 

ELECTRONICALLY AT ZOOM MEETING ID: 647 662 0089 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 11, 2025 

11:20 AM  

M I N U T E S 
______________________________________________________________________ 

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

Chair Sharif called the meeting to order at 11:20 am and performed a roll call.  
Quorum was established under the following participation: 

• Emma Sharif, Chair – Compton
• Francis De Leon Sanchez, Vice Chair – Bell Gardens
• Hugo Argumedo, Secretary – Commerce
• Maria Teresa Del Rio, Alternate Member – Hawaiian Gardens

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Secretary Argumedo moved and Vice Chair De Leon Sanchez seconded to 
approve the agenda as posted and presented. 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Bell Gardens Yes 
Commerce  Yes 

ITEM 4-1

4



  Compton   Yes 
  Hawaiian Gardens  Yes 

 
 
3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

The following individuals were present during the meeting: Juan Garza, Gisselle 
Delgado and Stephanie Arechiga participated in person.  Marvin Pineda 
participated via Zoom. 
 
No comments were provided by members of the public. 
 

 
4. NEW BUSINESS – OPEN SESSION 

 
4-1. Consideration and Possible Action to approve the Minutes of the May 14, 2025 
Regular Meeting of the Board. 
 

Vice Chair De Leon Sanchez moved and Secretary Argumedo seconded to 
approve the Minutes. 

 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 
 
  Bell Gardens   Yes 
  Commerce   Yes 
  Compton   Yes 
  Hawaiian Gardens  Abstain 

 
4-2. Consideration and possible action to receive and file Financial Summary and 
Warrant Register dated June 11, 2025. 

 
Executive Director Garza provided a general and specialized overview of the 
financial state of the JPA. 
 
Vice Chair De Leon Sanchez moved and Secretary Argumedo seconded to 
receive and file the Financial Summary and Warrant Register, as presented. 

 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 
 
  Bell Gardens   Yes 
  Commerce   Yes 
  Compton   Yes 
  Hawaiian Gardens  Yes 

 
 

5



4-3. Status update & report from California Advocacy, LLC with respect to legislative 
matters. 
 

Mr. Pineda reported on reactions to Attorney General Bonta’s proposed 
regulations on blackjack and third-party rotational games after the May public 
hearings.  He also provided a brief overview on legislation of interest, including SB 
783 (Rubio), AB 1221 (Bryan) and AB 1331 (Elhawary).   
 
Vice Chair De Leon Sanchez moved and Secretary Argumedo seconded to receive 
and file the report. 

 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

 
  Bell Gardens   Yes 
  Commerce   Yes 
  Compton   Yes 
  Hawaiian Gardens  Yes 

 
4-4. Consideration and possible action on legislative & regulatory matters. 

 
Secretary Argumedo recommended the JPA draft and distribute letters of gratitude 
to members of the public and stakeholders who voiced support for our cardrooms 
and member cities during the recent May public hearings held by the office of 
Attorney General Bonta.     
 
Secretary Argumedo moved and Vice Chair De Leon Sanchez seconded to draft 
and distribute letters of gratitude, as requested. 

 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

 
  Bell Gardens   Yes 
  Commerce   Yes 
  Compton   Yes 
  Hawaiian Gardens  Yes 

 
 

5. OTHER MATTERS AND REPORTS 
 
5-1. Report of General Counsel  

 
No action. 
 

 
 
 

6



5-2. Executive Director Report/Summary

Executive Director Garza reported on: 

1) Upcoming 2025 Gaming Efforts
a. Judicial (ongoing)
b. Legislative (monitoring)
c. Regulatory (AG Regs – ongoing media engagement and

public campaign efforts)
d. Public Initiative (ongoing)

2) Full compliance by JPA reporting officers with the 2024 Annual
Form 700 reporting requirements

Vice Chair De Leon Sanchez moved and Secretary Argumedo seconded to 
receive and file the report.  

The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Bell Gardens Yes 
Commerce  Yes 
Compton  Yes 
Hawaiian Gardens Yes 

6. NEW BUSINESS - CLOSED SESSION

None. 

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

For the next regular meeting of the board, Secretary Argumedo requested for a 
closed session discussion to be held on legal matters related to the JPA, 
cardrooms and tribal gaming stakeholders. 

8. CHAIRMAN AND BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

This is the time and place for the Chairman and Board Members to report on 
any other items of interest.  Upon request by an individual Board Member, 
the Authority may choose to take action on any of the subject matters listed 
below. 

Alternate Member Del Rio (Hawaiian Gardens) 

Secretary Argumedo (Commerce)  

Vice Chair De Leon Sanchez (Bell Gardens)  

7



Chair Sharif (Compton) 

9. ADJOURNMENT  (12:07 PM)

At 12:07 pm, Chair Sharif adjourned the meeting to the next regular meeting of the 
board of the California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority to be held 
on July 9, 2025 in the City of Commerce. 

_______________________ 
 Emma Sharif, Chair 

ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
 Hugo Argumedo, Secretary 

8



CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF-RELIANCE 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

WARRANT REPORT AND FINANCIAL 
SUMMARY – JUNE 2025 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 9, 2025. 
______________________________________________________________________ 

ITEM 4-2

9



City of Hawaiian Gardens

Page:  1
7/8/2025
10:05 am

BALANCE SHEET

As of:  6/30/2025 (PFY)

07/09/2025 JPA MEETING

Balances

Fund:  50 - CA CITIES FOR SELF RELIANCE
Assets

149,481.351000.0000  CASH

149,481.35Total Assets

Liabilities

15,410.002100.0000  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

15,410.00Total Liabilities

Reserves/Balances

117,659.692900.0000  FUND BALANCE-UNASSIGNED
16,411.662920.0000  CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

134,071.35Total Reserves/Balances

Total Liabilities & Balances 149,481.35

10



Ref. No. Vendor Name Invoice No. Invoice Date Invoice Description Invoice Amount

Edit List of Invoices - Summary
07/09/2025 JPA MEETING

07/08/2025

10:06 am

1

Date:

Time:

Page:City of Hawaiian Gardens 

Posting Date PONumber

183665 HUGO ARGUMEDO
2025-06-11

06/11/2025 06.11.25 MTG STIPEND
250.00

06/11/2025

250.00Vendor Total:

183666 MARIA TERESA DEL RIO
2025-06-11

06/11/2025 06.11.25 MTG STIPEND
250.00

06/11/2025

250.00Vendor Total:

183667 JUAN GARZA
2025-06-30

06/30/2025 JUN 2025 SALARY
6,744.00

06/30/2025

6,744.00Vendor Total:

183668 OLIVAREZ MADRUGA LAW
28221

06/30/2025 JUN 2025 SVCS - GENERAL
260.00

06/30/2025

183669 OLIVAREZ MADRUGA LAW
28222

06/30/2025 JUN 2025 SVCS - BOARD MEETINGS
740.00

06/30/2025

1,000.00Vendor Total:

183670 EVELYN PINEDA
2025-06-11

06/11/2025 JUN 2025 SVCS
6,666.00

06/11/2025

6,666.00Vendor Total:

183671 FRANCIS DE LEON SANCHEZ
2025-06-11

06/11/2025 06.11.25 MTG STIPEND
250.00

06/11/2025

250.00Vendor Total:

183672 EMMA SHARIF
2025-06-11

06/11/2025 06.11.25 MTG STIPEND
250.00

06/11/2025

250.00Vendor Total:

Grand Total:

Less Credit Memos:

Net Total:

Less Hand Check Total:

Outstanding Invoice Total: 15,410.00

15,410.00

15,410.00

0.00

0.00

Total Invoices: 8

11



City of Hawaiian Gardens

07/09/2025 JPA MEETING
7/8/2025
Page:  1

10:08 am

% BudUnencBalEncumb. YTDCURR MTHYTD ActualAmended Bud.Original Bud.For the Period:  7/1/2024 to 6/30/2025

REVENUE/EXPENDITURE REPORT

Fund Type:  SR  SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Fund:  50 - CA CITIES FOR SELF RELIANCE
Revenues

Function:  
Dept:  0000  ASSETS

Acct Class:  REV  REVENUE
3742.0050  JPA MEMBERSHIP FUNDING 157,500.00 157,500.00 157,500.00 0.00 0.00 100.00.00
3742.0052  CASINO DONATIONS 70,000.00 70,000.00 70,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.07,500.00

227,500.00 227,500.00 227,500.00 0.00 0.007,500.00 100.0REVENUE

227,500.00 227,500.00 227,500.00 0.00 0.007,500.00 100.0ASSETS

227,500.00 227,500.00 227,500.00 0.00 0.007,500.00 100.0Function:  

Revenues 227,500.00 227,500.00 227,500.00 0.00 0.007,500.00 100.0

Expenditures
Function:  

Dept:  4908  JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
Acct Class:  OPER  OPERATING COSTS

4200.0050  CONTRACT SVC-EX DIR JPA 80,925.00 80,925.00 80,928.00 0.00 -3.00 100.06,744.00
4200.0052  COMMUNICATIONS 14,400.00 14,400.00 0.00 0.00 14,400.00 0.00.00
4202.0000  AUDIT SERVICES 6,500.00 6,500.00 7,500.00 0.00 -1,000.00 115.40.00
4210.0000  TRAVEL & MEETINGS 0.00 0.00 1,117.48 0.00 -1,117.48 0.00.00
4211.0000  MEETING STIPENDS 17,250.00 17,250.00 13,475.00 0.00 3,775.00 78.11,000.00
4213.0000  OTHER OPERATING COSTS 9,000.00 9,000.00 0.00 0.00 9,000.00 0.00.00
4250.0001  LEGISLATIVE ADVOCATE/JPA 80,000.00 80,000.00 79,992.00 0.00 8.00 100.06,666.00
4252.0000  SPECIAL COUNSEL - CONTRACT 19,425.00 19,425.00 28,075.86 0.00 -8,650.86 144.51,000.00

227,500.00 227,500.00 211,088.34 0.00 16,411.6615,410.00 92.8OPERATING COSTS

227,500.00 227,500.00 211,088.34 0.00 16,411.6615,410.00 92.8JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

227,500.00 227,500.00 211,088.34 0.00 16,411.6615,410.00 92.8Function:  

Expenditures 227,500.00 227,500.00 211,088.34 0.00 16,411.6615,410.00 92.8

0.00Net Effect for CA CITIES FOR SELF RELIANCE
Change in Fund Balance: 16,411.66

0.00 0.00 16,411.66 -7,910.00 -16,411.66 0.0

0.00Net Effect for SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -16,411.66-7,910.0016,411.660.000.00

0.00 0.00 16,411.66 -7,910.00 0.00 -16,411.66Grand Total Net Effect:  

12



July 9, 0 20 25 

Califor n ia Update: Agenda 

1. California Attorney General – Cardroom Regulations – Letters
2. SB 783 (Rubio) – Outdoor  Adver tising
3. AB 1331 (Elhawary) – Workplace Surveillance
4. AB 831 (Avelino) – Spor ts Fantasy

ITEM 4-3

13

http://www.californiaadvocacy.com/


REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT AND 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES  

RFP Release Date 

Friday, July 11, 2025 

Proposal Submittal Deadline 

Friday, August 1, 2025 
6:00 PM 

ITEM 4-5

14



 
Contact Person:  

Juan Garza, Executive Director 
juan@sixheron.com 

562-882-7474  
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  

TABLE OF CONTENTS ................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

I. INTRODUCTION ........................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

II. THE OPPORTUNITY ...................................................................................................................3 

III. REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS ...................................................................................................3 

IV. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS ...............................................................................................4 

V. SELECTION PROCESS ...............................................................................................................5 

VI. TIMELINE ...................................................................................................................................6 

VII. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS .............................................................................7 

EXHIBIT A. SAMPLE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT ........................................10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15

mailto:juan@sixheron.com


I. INTRODUCTION

California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority (JPA) comprises four member 
cities with local card club operations that include the cities of Bell Gardens, Commerce, 
Compton and Hawaiian Gardens. The JPA’s mission is to empower communities and leadership 
statewide to advocate for card rooms as vital resources to cities and local services such as police, 
fire, schools and transportation. We achieve our mission by educating and engaging community, 
lobbying, communications and legal action. 

II. THE OPPORTUNITY

This RFP is intended to select a qualified and creative firm with demonstrated expertise 
in website design, development, and management services. The JPA seeks to create a modern, 
accessible, and user-friendly website that enhances community engagement and streamlines 
access to relevant information. The selected firm will work closely with the executive director 
to develop, maintain and manage a website that meets the needs of the JPA while ensuring 
compliance with industry standards and best practices. This RFP outlines the project objectives, 
scope of services, and submission requirements. Interested firms are invited to submit proposals 
detailing their experience, approach, and cost estimates to support the successful execution of 
this project. 

III. REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

The JPA is seeking proposals from qualified firms to design, develop, and manage a 
modern, user-friendly website. The JPA’s current website operates on GoDaddy. The selected 
firm will be responsible for creating and maintaining an intuitive and visually appealing website 
that enhances user experience, improves accessibility, and integrates essential services and 
communication tools.  

The scope includes website design, content migration preserving all existing functionality 
of the current website, mobile responsiveness, search engine optimization (SEO), and ongoing 
training, hosting, maintenance, and support. The firm must provide a content management 
system (CMS) that allows staff to update and manage content easily. Additionally, the website 
should incorporate security best practices and ensure compliance with all relevant legal and 
regulatory requirements. The final deliverable must reflect the JPA’s brand identity and support 
its commitment to transparency and community engagement. 

16



IV. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

The JPA will accept proposals submitted by electronic mail, USPS mail, or overnight 
courier (e.g., UPS, FedEx etc.).  To be accepted and considered, proposals are to be received by 
6 pm on Friday, August 1, 2025. 

All RFP proposals shall be submitted to: 

California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Attn: Juan Garza, Executive Director  
9835 Flower St. #790 
Bellflower, CA  90706 
juan@sixheron.com 

The JPA’s Designated Contact for this RFP is Juan Garza, Executive Director, 
juan@sixheron.com.  

The proposals must bear the Proposer’s name and address and must include “RFP 25-08-
01 – Website Development and Management Services” on the subject line. All Proposals must 
be submitted in the legal name of the organization and must be signed by an authorized 
representative of the organization who has the legal authority to enter into an agreement with the 
JPA.  

The JPA also reserves the right to extend the RFP Submission Deadlines at any time and 
for any reason, including for the purpose of requesting additional information from Proposers. 
With respect to timely submitted proposals, the JPA reserves the right to waive irregularities, 
informalities or defects in any or all responses.  

Each submitted proposal shall remain valid and binding for a period of one-hundred 
eighty (180) days from the Submission Deadline.  

Any modification, amendment, addition or alteration to any submission must be 
presented, in writing, executed by an authorized person or persons, and submitted prior to the 
Submission Deadline. An individual who is authorized to bind the submitting organization 
contractually shall sign the modification, amendment, addition, or alteration. The signature must 
indicate the title or position that the individual holds with the organization. An unsigned 
modification amendment, addition, or alteration shall be rejected and will not be considered with 
the submitted materials. 

No amendments, additions or alterations will be accepted after the Submission Deadline, 
unless requested by the JPA.  

17



V. SELECTION PROCESS

EVALUATION CRITERIA AND REVIEW PROCESS 

JPA staff will evaluate the proposals provided in response to this RFP based on the 
following criteria:  

(1) Quality and completeness of proposal;
(2) Quality, performance and effectiveness of the solution, goods and/or services to be

provided by the Proposer;
(3) Proposer’s experience, including the experience of staff to be assigned to the

project, with engagements of similar scope and complexity;
(4) Cost to the JPA;
(5) Proposer’s financial stability and length of time in business;
(6) Proposer’s prior record of performance with JPA or other public agencies;
(7) Proposer’s ability to provide future records, reports, data and/or services; and
(8) Proposer’s compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies (including JPA

policies), guidelines and orders governing prior or existing contracts performed by
the contractor.

All proposals will be reviewed for compliance with specifications including documented 
capability to perform the prescribed work in a satisfactory manner. Proposals, which appear to be 
compliant, will be evaluated on a point system (0-100 points, with 100 being the best possible 
score) in accordance with the following:  

Maximum Points 
Adherence to Scope of Services  30 points  
Meeting Proposal Requirements  30 points  
Compensation  20 points  
References   20 points 

18



VI. TIMELINE

The tentative schedule for this RFP is as follows: 

Issuance of RFP July 11, 2025 

Deadline for Questions to JPA (via email to juan@sixheron.com) July 23. 2025 

Deadline for JPA to Post Answers to Questions July 25. 2025 

Proposal Due Date August 1. 2025 

Evaluation Period August 6, 2025 

Approval of Contract by JPA Board of Directors August 13, 2025 

*The JPA will accept all questions submitted by the above deadline. All inquiries regarding
this RFP must be directed exclusively to Juan Garza by the Deadline above.

Ex-parte communications with any official, officer, or consultant, working on behalf of 
the JPA, with the exception of Juan Garza, related to this RFP will result in immediate 
disqualification.  

**The schedule above is tentative and subject to change at the discretion of the JPA, with 
appropriate notice to prospective proposers. All times are in pacific standard time (PST).   

Proposals must be submitted to Juan Garza no later than 6:00 p.m. on Friday August 1, 2025 
(“Submission Deadline”). The subject line should read “RFP 25-08-01– Website Development 
and Management Services.” Late proposals will not be considered. If the proposal includes 
any comments over and above the specific information requested in this RFP, such information 
should be included as a separate appendix and placed at the end of the proposal.  

19

mailto:juan@sixheron.com


VII. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

A. Proposals shall be prepared to simply and economically provide a straightforward,
concise description of the Proposer’s ability to meet the requirements of this RFP.

B. Proposers shall carefully read the information contained in this RFP and shall submit
complete responses to all requirements and questions as directed. Incomplete proposals
may be considered non-responsive and may be rejected in the JPA’s discretion. The
submission of a response to this RFP shall be deemed a representation and certification
by the proposer that it has read and understood the RFP, has investigated all aspects of
the RFP, and is aware of the applicable facts pertaining to the RFP process, its
procedures and requirements. No request for modification of the responses to this request
shall be considered after its submission on grounds that the proposer was not fully
informed as to any facts or conditions.

C. Proposers should be aware that the RFP and the contents of the successful proposal will
become a part of any subsequent contractual documents that may arise from this RFP.
Following the Submission Deadline, the JPA, pursuant to the California Public Records
Act (Govt. Code Section 7920.000 et seq.) reserves the right to make copies of all
submitted proposals available for inspection and copying by any interested member of
the public, except to the limited extent the JPA determines that any information
contained in a proposal is legally privileged under the California Public Records Act.  By
submission of a proposal, proposers acknowledge and agree that their proposal and any
information contained therein may be disclosed by the JPA to interested members of the
public, including other proposers. All responses to the RFP received become a matter of
public record and shall be regarded as public records, with the exception of those
elements in each proposal which are defined by the proposer as business or trade secrets
and plainly marked as “Confidential,” “Trade Secret,” or “Proprietary.” The JPA shall
not in any way be liable or responsible for the disclosure of any such proposal or
portions thereof, if they are not plainly marked as “Confidential,” “Trade Secret,” or
“Proprietary” or if disclosure is required under the Public Records Act. Any proposal
which contains language purporting to render all or significant portions of the proposal
“Confidential,” “Trade Secret,” or “Proprietary” shall be regarded as nonresponsive.

D. Proposer shall be solely and exclusively responsible for all costs incurred in connection
with the preparation and submission of the proposals; demonstrations; interviews;
preparation of responses to questions and requests for additional information; for
contract discussions; or for anything in any way related to this RFP. The JPA is not
liable for any costs incurred by a proposer in response to this RFP, including attorney
costs.  Whether or not a Proposer is awarded an Agreement pursuant to this RFP, no
proposer shall be entitled to reimbursement for any costs or expenses associated with the
proposer’s participation in this RFP process. Proposals will become the property of the
JPA and may be used by the JPA in any way deemed appropriate.  Received proposals
will not be returned to the Proposer, except that proposals that are untimely submitted to

20



the JPA shall be returned to the proposer. Failure to comply with all requirements 
contained in this RFP may result in the rejection of a proposal.  

E. The JPA operates and is funded on a fiscal year basis. Accordingly, the JPA reserves the
right to terminate, without any liability, any agreement for which funding is not
available.

F. The JPA shall not be responsible for any verbal communication between any employee
of the JPA and any Proposer. Only written requirements and qualifications will be
considered. No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise change, or affect
the terms, conditions, or specifications stated in the resulting contract.

G. Receipt of an addendum of the RFP by a Proposer must be acknowledged by submitting
the signed addendum with the proposal.

H. A proposal may be modified or withdrawn in person at any time before the Submission
Deadline, provided a receipt for the withdrawn proposal is signed by the Proposer’s
authorized representative. The JPA reserves the right to request proof of authorization to
withdraw a proposal. Proposals may not be withdrawn after the proposal closing date and
each Proposer agrees to this stipulation upon submittal of its proposal. However, all
proposals are subject to negotiation before an agreement is awarded as further described
below.

I. The JPA may, in the evaluation of proposals, request clarification from proposers
regarding their proposals, obtain additional material or literature, and pursue other
avenues of research as necessary to ensure that a thorough evaluation is conducted.

J. By submitting a proposal in response to this RFP, the Proposer accepts the evaluation
process and acknowledges and accepts that determination will require subjective
judgments by the JPA.

K. Negotiations may be conducted with responsible Proposers who submit proposals that
are reasonably selected for consideration. All proposers reasonably selected for
consideration based on criteria set forth in this RFP may be given an opportunity to make
a presentation and/or interview.

L. The JPA expects the highest level of ethical conduct from Proposers, including
adherence to all applicable laws and local ordinances regarding ethical behavior.

M. The JPA reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received as a result of this RFP.
The JPA’s potential award will not be based on any single factor.  If an agreement is
awarded, it will be awarded to the proposer who in the judgment of the JPA, has
presented a project with the ability to have significant impact in bringing people into the
JPA, stimulating additional business development, quality, completeness, clarity of
content, responsiveness to the requirements, an understanding of JPA’s objectives, and
other factors which the JPA may consider relevant and important in determining which

21



proposal(s) is best for the JPA. The JPA reserves the right to cancel or modify this RFP.  
There is no guarantee that the JPA will award an agreement.  
  

N. Factors such as, but not limited to, any of the following may be considered just cause to 
disqualify a response to the RFP without further consideration:  

• Evidence of collusion, directly or indirectly, among proposers in regard to the 
amount, terms, or conditions of this proposal;  

• Ex-parte communications with any official, officer, or consultant, working on 
behalf of the JPA, with the exception of Juan Garza, related to this RFP;   

• Existence of any lawsuit, unresolved contractual claim or dispute between 
proposer and the JPA;  

• Evidence of incorrect information submitted as part of the RFP; and 
• Evidence of proposer’s inability to successfully complete the responsibilities and 

obligations of the proposed scope of work. 
 

O. Acceptance of any proposal is contingent upon the Proposer’s certification and 
agreement by submittal of its offer, to comply and act in accordance with all provisions 
of the JPA’s bylaws.   
  

P. The successful proposer shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person based on 
race, sex, color, age, religion, sexual orientation, actual or perceived gender identity, 
disability, ethnicity, or national origin, or any other protected classification in connection 
with or related to the performance of the project.   
  

Q. All questions must be directed to Juan Garza, juan@sixheron.com with “RFP 25-08-01” 
the subject line, communications with the staff, members of the JPA, and other JPA 
officials and officers regarding this Property and the proposal are strictly prohibited and 
shall result in an immediate disqualification from consideration of this RFP.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22



EXHIBIT “A” 
SAMPLE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

23



TO:   Honorable Chair and Members of the Governing Board 

FROM:  Juan Garza, Executive Director  

SUBJECT: Executive Director Report/Summary   

DATE: July 9, 2025 

1) Upcoming 2025 Gaming Efforts:
a. Judicial (ongoing)
b. Legislative (monitoring)
c. Regulatory (AG Regs – Comments & Media Engagement)
d. Public Initiative (ongoing)

ITEM 5-2

24


	FINAL - 07-09-2025 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1.   CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

	AGENDA ITEM 4-1 - 06-11-2025 Regular Meeting Draft Minutes
	1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

	AGENDA ITEM 4-2 - 2025-07-09 JPA Warrant Report and Financial Summary for June 2025
	AGENDA ITEM 4-3 - July 9th, 2025 - California Advocacy Agenda
	AGENDA ITEM 4-5 - RFP.Web Design.Draft - 4905-8918-2547 - 4929-0445-4228
	AGENDA ITEM 5-2 - ED Report



